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NOTICE 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the TWENTY EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) of the 
Members of RATHI BARS LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 4.30 P. M. 
through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) organized by the Company, to 
transact the following businesses and The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered 
Office of the Company situated at A-24/7, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New 
Delhi-110044:                 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. ADOPTION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021 and Statement 
of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Directors and 
Auditors thereon:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Company’s Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Audited 
Statement of Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date 
together with Director’s and Auditor’s Report thereon be and are hereby approved and adopted.” 
 
2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF RETIRING DIRECTOR: 
 
TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGH FIT, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATIONS, IF ANY, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Chander Mohan (DIN:08679269), who retires from the office of Director by 
rotation in this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, 
whose office shall be liable for retirement by rotation.” 
 
3. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139 (8) and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), M/s Gupta  Jalan &  Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN :00372IN), be and is 
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company to fill the casual vacancy caused by resignation 
of M/s Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co. (FRN : 003569C) for the period of five years from 2021-22 to 
2025-26 and to hold office till the conclusion of the 33rd Annual general Meeting at such remuneration 
as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Director of the Company and the Auditors”. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
4. REGULARISATION OF APPOINTMENT OF ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR, MR. 
SAMPAT LAL 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sampat Lal (DIN: 09186808), who was appointed as an Additional Director on 
the Board of Directors (‘Board’) of the Company with effect from 02nd June, 2021, in terms of Section 
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161 of Companies Act 2013 and holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is 
hereby appointed as the Director of the Company.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give complete effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
5. APPOINTMENT OF MANANGING DIRECTOR, MR. ANURAG RATHI AS MANAGING DIRECTOR 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company and recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Anurag Rathi (DIN: 00063345), be and is hereby appointed as the Managing 
Director of the Company for a period of Five years with effect from 21st day of January, 2021 on such 
terms and conditions  with the liberty given to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of the said reappointment and/or remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to by and 
between the Company and Mr. Anurag Rathi provided, however, such alterations are within the 
maximum limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 for the time being in force.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all the acts and take such 
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
6. APPOINTMENT OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR, MR. UDDHAV RATHI AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 and the Articles of Association of the Company & recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Uddhav Rathi (DIN: 06604905), be and is hereby appointed as Whole 
Time Director of the Company for a period of Five years with effect from 21st day of January, 2021 on 
such terms and conditions, with the liberty given to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms 
and conditions of the said appointment and/or remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to by 
and between the Company and Mr. Uddhav Rathi provided however, such alterations are within the 
maximum limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 for the time being in force.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give complete effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
7. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. SONALI V CHITALKAR AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and 
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Mrs. Sonali V 
Chitalkar who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at the 23rd Annual 
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General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September 2016 and who holds office of the 
Independent Director up to  29th September, 2021 and who is eligible for being re-appointment as 
an Independent Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold  for a second term of 5 consecutive years. 
 
8. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH RATHI SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 (1) (a) and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions 
and permissions as may be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Contracts and/or agreements with 
Rathi Special Steels Limited (three directors are common in both the companies) with respect to sale, 
purchase or supply of goods or materials, selling or otherwise disposing of at arm’s length prices up to 
an amount not exceeding an aggregate of Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty Crore) per annum as per the terms 
and conditions set out in the draft agreement placed before the meeting and initialed by the chairman 
for the purpose of identification and in such form and manner as the Board in its absolute discretion 
may deem fit and proper.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in 
relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of the Company and incidental thereto, and to 
sign and execute all deeds, applications, documents and writing that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, 
expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 
 
9. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH BHIWADI IRON PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 (1) (a) and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions 
and permissions as may be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Contracts and/or agreements with 
Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited (three directors are common in both the companies) with respect to sale, 
purchase or supply of goods or materials, selling or otherwise disposing of arm’s length prices up to an 
amount not exceeding an aggregate of Rs. 75 Crore (Rupees Seventy-Five Crore) per annum as per the 
terms and conditions set out in the draft agreement placed before the meeting and initialed by the 
chairman for the purpose of identification and in such form and manner as the Board in its absolute 
discretion may deem fit and proper.” 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in 
relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of the Company and incidental thereto, and to 
sign and execute all deeds, applications, documents and writing that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, 
expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 
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10. APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS WITH KHUSHKHERA STEELS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 (1) (a) and all other applicable 
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions 
and permissions as may be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into Contracts and/or agreements with 
Khushkhera Steels Private Limited (three directors are common in both the companies) with respect 
to sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials, selling or otherwise disposing of arm’s length prices 
up to an amount not exceeding an aggregate of Rs. 10 Crore (Rupees Ten Crore) per annum as per the 
terms and conditions set out in the draft agreement placed before the meeting and initialed by the 
chairman for the purpose of identification and in such form and manner as the Board in its absolute 
discretion may deem fit and proper.”  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statutory, contractual or otherwise, in 
relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of the Company and incidental thereto, and to 
sign and execute all deeds, applications, documents and writing that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, 
expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution.” 
 
11. RATIFICATION OF COST AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION: 
 
TO CONSIDER AND, IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION, THE 
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made there under, as amended from 
time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five 
Thousand Only) payable to Avnesh Jain & Co., Cost Accountants is appointed as Cost Auditor of the 
Company to conduct Cost Audits as may be ordered by the Central Government under the Act and the 
Rules there under, for the year ending 31st March, 2022.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

By order of the Board of Directors 
FOR RATHI BARS LIMITED 

 
 

Sd/- 
Anurag Rathi 

(Managing Director) 
DIN: 00063345 

Address: 6, Sadhna Enclave, 
New Delhi-110017 

 
 

NOTES: 
 

1. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has 
vide its circular dated 13th January, 2021 read with circulars dated 5th May, 2020, 8th April, 
2020 and 13th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding 
of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM Facility, without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the 
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Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), MCA Circulars and circular dated 15th January, 
2021 read with 12th May 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI 
Circular”), the 28th AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM Facility. The detailed 
procedure for participating in the through VC/OAVM Facility is mentioned hereunder in this 
notice. The deemed venue for the 28th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

2. Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, provision of physical attendance of 
Members and appointment of proxies have been dispensed with. Accordingly, appointment of 
proxies by the members will not be available for the 28th AGM of the Company and therefore 
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. 
 

3. Corporate members intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are 
requested to send a scanned copy of duly certified copy of the Board or governing body 
resolution authorizing the representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its 
registered email address to PWR Associates, Company Secretaries (pwrasso@gmail.com) with 
a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

4. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

5. An Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
relating to special businesses to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto. 
 

6. Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on 
General Meetings ("SS-2"), in respect of re-appointment of directors at the Annual General 
Meeting, an Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
in respect of special business referred in the Notice is appended hereto and forms part of this 
Notice. 
 

7. Pursuant to Section 91 of the Act and Regulation 42 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the 
Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 
23rd September, 2021 to 29th September 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 28th 
AGM of the Company. 
 

8.  The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, September 26, 2021 (09:00 am) and ends 
on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 (05:00 pm). No e-voting shall be allowed beyond the said date 
and time. During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form 
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of September 22, 2021, may cast their vote by 
remote e-voting. 
 

9. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate immediately to the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of  the  Company,  MAS  Services  Limited, T-34, 2nd Floor, 
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110 020 Ph:- 011-26387281/82/83 Fax:- 011-
26387384  quoting registered Folio No. (a) details of their bank account/change in bank 
account, if any, and (b) change in their address, if any, with pin code number.   
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In case, shares are in demat form members are requested to update their bank detail with their 
depository participant. 
 
The Equity Share capital of the Company is held by 7185 Shareholders as on 31.03.2021, out of 
which 7179 Shareholders holding almost 100.00 % of the capital are in dematerialsed form and 
the balance 6 shareholders holding (38 shares) 0.00% of the capital are in physical form. The 
shareholders having shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize the shares 
at the earliest. 
 

10. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the 
shareholders of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by 
him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this 
facility may submit the requisite nomination form. 
 

11. Any member requiring further information on the Accounts at the meeting is requested to send 
the queries in writing to CFO, at least one week before the meeting. 
 

12. Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the AGM, 
the relevant information’s are furnished as Annexure A to the Notice. The Directors have furnished 
consent/ declaration for their appointment/re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules there under. 
 

13. Members may also note that the 28th Annual Report for the Financial Year 2020-2021 is available on 
the Company’s website, www.rathisteels.com.  
 

14. M/s PWR Associates, Company Secretaries, has been appointed as a scrutinizer for the conduct of 
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

15. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the e-voting period, unlock the votes in the presence of 
at least two witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of 
the votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company. 
 

16. E-voting process is given on the back of form for e-voting passwords attached separately along with 
the Annual Report. 

 
17. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on cut-off date i.e. 22rd September, 2021 
 

18. The results including the e-voting results shall be declared at the registered office of the Company 
within 2 days of the conclusion of the AGM by the Chairman of the meeting and shall be placed on 
the Company’s website www.rathisteels.com. 
 

19. In respect of the matters pertaining to nomination, power of attorney, change in name/address 
etc., the members are requested to approach the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer 
Agent, in respect of shares held in physical form and the respective Depository Participants, in 
case of shares held in electronic form. In all correspondence with the Company/Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, members are requested to quote their folio numbers or DP ID and Client 
ID for physical or electronic holdings respectively. 
 

20. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at its 
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day except 
Saturdays, upto the date of meeting. 
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21. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant 
in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
account. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the 
Company/Registrar.  

22. Members who hold shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same 
order of names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar, for consolidation 
into a single folio.   

23. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the 
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 41st AGM and the Annual 
Report for the year 2020-21 including therein the Audited Financial Statements for financial year ended 
31st March 2021, are being sent only by email to the Members. 

In case you have not registered your email id with depository or RTA you may registered your 
email id in following manner: 

 
Physical 
Holding 

Send a signed request to Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, MAS 
Services Limited at info@masserv.com providing Folio number, Name of the 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (Front and Back), PAN (Self 
attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR (Self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) for registering email address. 

Demat 
Holding 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email 
address as per the process advised by DP. 

 
24. Voting through electronic means: In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of the 

Listing Regulations and Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 Company 
is offering e-voting facility to its members. Detailed procedure is given in the enclosed letter.   

 
INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE EVOTING, EVOTING AND JOINING OF AGM THROUGH VIDEO 
CONFERENCING  
 

(i)   The shareholders need to visit the e-voting website http://www.evotingindia.com/. 
 

(ii)  Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

(iii)  Now enter your User ID  
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 
 

(iv)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

(v)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be 
used.  

 
(vi)  If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 
 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
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● Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ 
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence/PAN number 
which is mentioned in email. 

 
(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(viii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is also to be used 
by the demat holders for voting on resolutions of any other Company for which they 
are eligible to vote, provided that the Company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

(ix) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 
remote e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(x)                Click on the EVSN for the Rathi Bars Limited.  
(xi) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same, 

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES 
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 

(xii)              Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
(xiii) After selecting the resolution on which you have decided to vote, click on “SUBMIT”. A 

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else 
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your   vote. 

(xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page. 

(xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and 
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as 
prompted by the system. 

(xvii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-
Voting app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.  

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHO WISH TO OBTAIN LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-
VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE BUT WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES 
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES: 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- Kindly send an email with a scanned request letter duly 

signed by 1st shareholder, scan copy of front and back of one share certificate, copy of 
PAN card and Aadhar card to  info@masserv.com 

 
2. For Demat shareholders - Kindly update your email id with your depository participant 

and send copy of client master to info@masserv.com 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC: 
 

(i) To join the meeting, the shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
http://www.evotingindia.com/ and login as explained above. After logging-in, kindly click on 
'live streaming' tab and you will be redirected to ‘cisco’ website. 

 
  In the “Name” field                   - Put your USERID as informed in e-email. 
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  In the “last name” field            - Enter your Name  
  
  In the “Email ID” field              - Put your email ID 
  
  In the “Event password” field - Put the password as “cdsl@1234” 

 
  Click join now button. 
 

Now screen will be displayed for downloading CISCO driver for VC.  Please click on run 
temporary file download.  Downloading of driver will be start open driver and click on run.  
 
Event will start and you will be in the AGM through Video conferencing. 
 
You can join meeting through laptop, tablet, and desktop. In case you want to join through 
mobile, you need to download the webex meet app from the respective play store. 

 
PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH DESKTOP OR LAPTOP: 
 
1. System requirement: 
 Windows 7, 8 or 10   
 I3  
 Microphone, speaker  
 Internet speed minimum 700 kbps 
 Date and time of computer should be current date and time 
 
PRE-REQUISITE FOR JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH MOBILE: 
 
 Please download webex application from play store 
 
NOTE: IT IS ADVISABLE TO LOGIN BEFOREHAND AT E-VOTING SYSTEM AS EXPLAINED IN E-VOTING 
INSTRUCTIONSABOVE, TO BE FAMILIAR WITH THE PROCEDURE, SO THAT YOU DO NOT FACE ANY 
TROUBLE WHILE LOGGING-INDURING THE AGM. 
 
PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING OF MEETING THROUGH VC  
(EXPLAINED USING SCREENSHOTS): 
 
i. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website http://www.evotingindia.com/. 

 
Below screen will be appear: 
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ii. Press Shareholders/Members tab, after which the below screen will be appear. 

 
iii. Enter user id as mentioned in your invite email, or read point number (iii) as given above. 

 
                                                                                                    FOR RATHI BARS LIMITED            

          
 

                                                                                                                                                                  Sd/- 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                   Anurag Rathi 
Date: 03rd September, 2021                           (Managing Director) 
                                              DIN:00063345 
 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO 4: APPOINTMENT OF ADDITIONAL DIRECTOR, MR. SAMPAT LAL AS DIRECTOR 
 
Mr. Sampat Lal was appointed as an Additional Independent Director of the Company with effect from 
02nd June, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 and 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 
 
The Board is of the view that the appointment of Mr. Sampat Lal on the Company’s Board as Director is 
desirable and would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. 3 
for approval by the members of the Company. 
 
None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives, except Mr. Sampat 
Lal himself, is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. The Board recommends the 
said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution 
 
The resolution at Item No. 4 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
ITEM NO 5: APPOINTMENT OF MANAGING DIRECTOR MR ANURAG RATHI 
 
Mr. Anurag Rathi (DIN: 00063345) is the Director of the Company since incorporation and now in the 
Board Meeting held on 21st day of January, 2021, Subject to the approval of shareholders, he has been 
appointed as the Managing Director after the demise of Sh K K Rathi, pursuant to provisions of Section 
196, 197, 203, Rules and Schedule V (Part) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under 
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and the Articles of Association of the Company. Since his appointment, he has been heading the finance 
division of the Company. Therefore, his appointment as Managing Director requires the approval of 
shareholders through Special Resolution. 
 
The duties of the Managing Director shall be discharged subject to the superintendence, control and 
direction of the Board and he shall perform on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of 
business all such acts, deeds, and things, which in the ordinary course of business, he may consider 
necessary or proper or in the interest of the Company.  
 
Terms & Conditions  

1. Designation: Managing Director  
2. Term: 5 years with effect from 21.01.2021 
3. Salary: The Board has the liberty to fix a remuneration and other perquisites pursuant to the 

provisions of section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V (Part) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made there under and the Articles of Association of the Company but the overall 
remuneration shall be within the limits of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
The resolution at Item No. 5 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives, other than 
Mr. Uddhav Rathi, in his personal capacity is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for your Approval. 
 
ITEM NO 6: APPOINTMENT OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR MR UDDHAV RATHI 
 
Mr. Uddhav Rathi (DIN: 06604905) is the Director of the Company since 13th February, 2014 and 
appointed as Whole Time Director and CFO of the Company in the Board Meeting held on 21st day of 
January, 2021 pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The duties of the Whole Time 
Director shall be discharged subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board and he 
shall perform on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course of business all such acts, deeds, and 
things, which in the ordinary course of business, he may consider necessary or proper or in the 
interest of the Company.  
 
Terms & Conditions  

1. Designation: Whole Time Director- CFO 
2. Term: 5 years with effect from 21.01.2021  
3. Salary: The Board has the liberty to fix a remuneration and other perquisites pursuant to the 

provisions of section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V (Part II) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made there under and the Articles of Association of the Company but the overall 
remuneration shall be within the limits of the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
The resolution at Item No. 6 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives, other than 
Mr. Anurag Rathi in his personal capacity is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this 
resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for your Approval. 
 
ITEM NO 7: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MS. SONALI V CHITALKAR AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
OF THE COMPANY 
The members of the Company at the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2016 had 
approved the appointment of Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar as an Independent Director of the Company, 
whose term is due to expire on 29th September, 2021. 
 
As per Section 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director shall hold the office for a 
term of up to five consecutive five years on the Board of the Company but shall be eligible for re-
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appointment on passing a special resolution for another term of five consecutive years on the Board of 
the Company. In line with the aforesaid provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in view of long, rich 
experience, continued valuable guidance to the management and strong Board performance of Ms. 
Sonali V Chitalkar, it is proposed to re-appoint him for the second term for a period of five years. 
 
The resolution at Item No. 6 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is 
Concerned or interested in the Resolution. 
 
ITEM NO 8: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH RATHI SPECIAL STEELS LIMITED 
 
The Company is carrying business transactions with Rathi Special Steels Limited (a related party) for 
the sale/purchase of steel products. Pursuant to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company can enter into business transactions at arm’s length with related party only with the 
approval of shareholders accorded by way of a special resolution and therefore, the Board hereby 
proposes and recommends the business transactions to the extent of Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty Crore)  
per annum, to the shareholders for their approval in the forthcoming AGM. 
 
The resolution at Item No. 8 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
Management of both the companies is common and managed by family members except the 
independent directors and they are concerned or interested in the Resolution only to the extent of 
their shareholding. 
 
ITEM NO 9: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION WITH BHIWADI IRON PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
The Company is carrying business transactions with Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited (a related party) for 
the sale/purchase of steel products. Pursuant to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company can enter into business transactions with related party only with the approval of 
shareholders accorded by way of a special resolution and therefore, the Board hereby proposes and 
recommends the business transaction to the extent of Rs.75 Crore (Rupees Seventy Five Crore) per 
annum, to the shareholders for their approval in the forthcoming AGM. 
 
The resolution at Item No. 9 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
Management of both the companies is common and managed by family members except the 
independent directors and they are concerned or interested in the Resolution only to the extent of 
their shareholding. 
 
ITEM NO 10: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION KHUSHKERA STEELS PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
The Company is carrying business transactions with Khushkera Private Limited (a related party) for 
the sale/purchase of steel products. Pursuant to Section 188 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company can enter into business transactions with related party only with the approval of 
shareholders accorded by way of a special resolution and therefore, the Board hereby proposes and 
recommends the business transaction to the extent of Rs. 10 Crore (Rupees Ten Crore) per annum, to 
the shareholders for their approval in the forthcoming AGM. 
 
The resolution at Item No. 10 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
Management of both the companies is common and managed by family members except the 
independent directors and they are concerned or interested in the Resolution only to the extent of 
their shareholding. 
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ITEM NO 11: RATIFICATION OF COST AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 
 
The Company is directed under Section 148 of the Act to have the audit of its cost records conducted 
by a Cost Accountant in practice. The Board of your Company has, on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, approved the appointment of M/s Avnesh Jain & Co., as the Cost Auditors of the Company 
to conduct Cost Audits as may be ordered by the Central Government under the Act and the Rules 
there under for the year ending 31st March, 2022, at a remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-
Five Thousand). 
 
M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. has furnished a certificate regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost 
Auditors of the Company. M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. has vast experience in the field of Cost Audit and has 
conducted the audit of cost records of the Company for the past several years under the provisions of 
the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956/2013. 
 
The Board has approved the remuneration Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Thousand) to M/s 
Avnesh Jain & Co. as the Cost Auditors and the ratification of the shareholders is sought for the same by 
Ordinary Resolution. 
 
The resolution at Item No. 11 is recommended for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is 
Concerned or interested in the Resolution. 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 

FOR RATHI BARS LIMITED 
 

 
Sd/- 

Anurag Rathi 
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 00063345 
Date: 03.09.2021                                                                                                             Address: 6, Sadhna Enclave 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                                               New Delhi-110017 
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ANNEXURE-A 
 
Details of Directors seeking re-appointment /appointment at 28th Annual General Meeting as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 
 

PARTICULARS Mr. Anurag Rathi 

Date of Birth 26.11.1971 

Date of Appointment 10.08.1993 

Qualifications Graduate 

Expertise in specific functional areas Having rich experience in Iron & Steel Industry 

 Terms and conditions of Appointment Appointment as Managing Director 

Directorships held in other public companies 
(excluding foreign companies and Section 8 
companies) 

 

Rathi Special Steels Limited 
Gordhan Das Rathi Steels Limited 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies (includes only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee). 
 

0 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 
the year 

6 

Relationship with other directors and key 
managerial personnel  

Mr. Uddhav Rathi – Nephew 
 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31st March, 
2021 

12,16,751 (7.45%) 

 
 

PARTICULARS Mr. Uddhav Rathi 

Date of Birth 26.10.1991 

Date of Appointment 13.02.2014 

Qualifications Graduate 

Expertise in specific functional areas Marketing and Finance 

Terms and conditions of Appointment Appointment as Whole Time Director 

Directorships held in other public companies 
(excluding foreign companies and Section 8 
companies) 

 

Rathi Special Steels Limited 
Gordhan Das Rathi Steels Limited 
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Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies (includes only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee). 

1 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 
the year 

6 

Relationship with other directors and key 
managerial personnel  

Mr. Anurag Rathi – Uncle 
 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31st March, 
2021 

8,59,330 (5.26%) 

 
PARTICULARS Mr. Sampat Lal 

Date of Birth 02.04.1995 

Date of Appointment 02.06.2021 

Qualifications Post-Graduate 

Expertise in specific functional areas Finance 

Terms and conditions of Re-appointment As mentioned in the Notice and explanatory 
statement 

Directorships held in other public companies 
(excluding foreign companies and Section 8 
companies) 

 

NIL 
 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies (includes only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee). 
 

NIL 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 
the year 

NIL 

Relationship with other directors and key 
managerial personnel  

Nil 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31st March, 
2021 

Nil 

 
PARTICULARS Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar 

Date of Birth 25.12.1972 

Date of Appointment 30.09.2016 

Qualifications PGDM 

Expertise in specific functional areas Management 

Terms and conditions of Re-appointment Re- Appointment as Independent Director 

Directorships held in other public companies 
(excluding foreign companies and Section 8 
companies) 

 

Rathi Special Steels Limited 
Gordhan Das Rathi Steels Limited 
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Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of 
other public companies (includes only Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee). 

NIL 

Number of meetings of the Board attended during 
the year 

4 

Relationship with other directors and key 
managerial personnel  

NIL 
 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31st March, 
2021 

NIL 
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B O A R D ’ S   R E P O R T 
 

To The Members of 
RATHI BARS LIMITED, 
 
The Board of Directors present the Twenty Eighth Report on business and operations along with 
financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
COMPANY PERFORMANCE: 
 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is summarized below: 
               (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Financial Year Ended 2020-2021 2019-2020 
Total Income from Operations  32,374.52 38,300.50 
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1221.80 1201.60 
Less: Interest 348.98 352.27 
Less: Depreciation 569.34 572.34 
Profit Before Tax 303.48 287.37 
Less: Provision for Tax  72.38 15.27 
Profit after Tax 231.10 272.09 
Balance of Profit brought forward 4817.82 4,565.48 
Balance available for appropriation 5073.90 4,817.82 

 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS: 
 
Due to the Covid19 Pendemic during the period, Global economic activity faced several challenges in 
the year 2020-21, resulting in a slowdown which was worse than the global financial crisis. Global 
crude steel production also went down and due to lack of demand and closure of industries due to 
pendamic, steel prices remained under pressure due to continued and extensive destocking across 
global steel markets also, coupled with a slowdown in overall consumption. The outbreak of Corona 
virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India impacted the Company’s performance in the whole 
financial year of 2020-21. Despite of all the problems and issues, your company has made a profit of 
Rs. 2, 31, 10,009/- (After Tax) during the year in comparison of Rs. 2, 72, 09,969/- in previous year and 
is hopeful of maintaining and improving its positions in the future. 
 
IMPACT OF COVID-19: 
 
The financial year 2020-21 was a highly disruptive and challenging year wherein outbreak of 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) had led to an unprecedented health crisis and has disrupted 
economic activities and global trade. COVID-19 has been declared as a pandemic by the World Health 
Organization and subsequent lock down, business shutdowns, quarantines and restrictions were 
imposed by the Central and State Government(s) in India, the manufacturing facilities of the Company 
remained suspended from 25th March, 2020 till 6th May, 2020. In compliance with the necessary 
instructions/guidelines, the Company resumed partial operations on 7th May, 2020 in a phased 
manner, while ensuring health and safety of all the stakeholders. Further, the recent second wave of 
COVID-19 has resulted in partial lockdown/restriction in various States. This situation resulted in 
temporary disturbance in the economic activities through interruption in manufacturing process, 
disruption in supply chain, disruption in domestic and international demand for stainless steel, etc. for 
the Company during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. 
 
Detailed information on the same has been included under the Management Discussion & Analysis 
report forming part of this Annual Report. 
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DIVIDEND: 
 
Your directors do not recommend any dividend at this stage as the Company requires ploughing back 
of the profits to the working capital of the Company and expects better results in the coming years.  
 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crore Only) and the 
Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 16,33,03,570/- (Rupees Sixteen Crore Thirty-Three Lakh Three 
Thousand Five Hundred Seventy only). There is no change in paid up capital of the Company during 
the year under review. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL 
YEAR: 
 
There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the 
financial statements relate and the date of the Report. 
 
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year 2020-2021. 
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 
The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profit in the profit and loss account. 
Accordingly, the Company has not transferred any amount to the ‘Reserves’ for the year ended March 
31, 2021. 
 
INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF): 
 
There is no such amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there 
under. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 
 
a) The Present Board Constitutes Mr. Anurag Rathi (Managing Director), Mr. Uddhav Rathi (Whole-

Time Director cum CFO), Mr. Chander Mohan (Non-Executive Director), Ms. Shikha Chakraborty, 
Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar and Mr. Sampat Lal (Independent Directors) of the Company. 

 
b) Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar, Ms. Shikha 

Chakraborty and Mr. Sampat Lal are Independent Directors of the Company. 
 

c) Sh. Kamlesh Kumar Rathi (Managing Director) passed away on 28th December, 2020, after illness. 
 

d) Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg (Independent Director) resigned from the position of Director w.e.f 21st 
January, 2021 and Mr. Binod Kumar Maheshwari (Independent Director) resigned from the 
position of Director w.e.f 01st March, 2021 

 
e) Mr. Chander Mohan who was appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f 30th January,2020 and was 

regularized in the Annual General Meeting held on 29th September, 2020. 
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f) Mr. Amit Kumar Mangla resigned from the position of Company Secretary & Compliance officer 
w.e.f 21st May, 2020 and Mr. Satinder Singh has been appointed as Company Secretary & 
Compliance officer w.e.f 21st January, 2021. 

 
g) Mr. Sampat Lal was appointed as an Additional Independent Director w.e.f 02nd June, 2021. 
 
h) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company and recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Mr.  Anurag Rathi has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Uddhav Rathi 
as the Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer for a period of Five years with effect from 
21st day of January 2021, subject to the approval of shareholders. 

 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 
The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. 
 
BOARD EVALUATION: 
 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board 
Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate 
Governance requirements as prescribed by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations 2015. 
 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors 
on the basis of the criteria such as the Board’s composition and structure, effectiveness of Board’s 
processes, information and functioning, etc. 
 
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the 
Committee Members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness 
of Committee Meetings, etc. 
 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the 
individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to 
the Board and Committee Meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on 
the key aspects of his role. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE: 
 
Mr. Anurag Rathi, and Mr. Uddhav Rathi are related to each other in accordance with Section 2 (77) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014 
but Mr. Chander Mohan (Non-Executive Director) and Ms. Shikha Chakraborty, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar 
and Mr. Sampat Lal are the Independent Directors of the Company, hence they are not related to the 
other Directors of the Company. 
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY: 
 
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) framed a 
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The 
Remuneration Policy has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. 
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)/SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 
 

The remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is in 
accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in accordance with Section 178 
of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. 
 
The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of Directors/ employees of the 
Company is as follows: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name Designation Remuneration 
paid FY 2020-
2021 (in Lakhs) 

Ratio/Times 
per Median of 
employee 
remuneration 

Percentage 
Increase/ 
Decrease in the 
Remuneration 

1. Kamlesh Kumar 
Rathi 
(Upto 28.12.2020) 

Managing 
Director 

NIL NIL NIL 

2. Anurag Rathi 
Upto 20.01.2020 
w.e.f 21.01.2021 

WTD/CFO 
 
Managing 
Director 

Rs 29.15 NIL NIL 

3. Uddhav Rathi 
w.e.f 21.01.2021 

WTD/ CFO NIL NIL NIL 

3. Amit Kumar Mangla 
(Upto 21.05.2020) 

Company 
Secretary 

NIL (Due to 
Covid and 
Lockdown 

NIL NIL 

4. Satinder Singh*(w.e.f 
21.01.2021) 

Company 
Secretary 

1.10 NIL NIL 

 
Notes: 
 
1.      The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 2020-21 

and include sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year.  
2.      The remuneration to Directors is within the overall limits approved by the shareholders of the 

Company  
3.       *The remuneration paid to Mr. Satinder Singh is for two months only. Accordingly, the percentage 

increase/ decrease in their remuneration and ratio of remuneration to median remuneration is 
not reported. 

 
NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: 
 
During the Financial Year 2020-2021, the Company held Six Board meetings of the Board of Directors 
as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to 
while considering the time gap between two meetings. 
 
For details of the meetings of the Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms 
part of this Report. 
 
OPERATIONAL REVIEW:  
 
During the year, your Company had produced 76365.504 MT Steel Bars (Including trading purchase 
25548.495 MT) and 3895.210 MT Ingots/Billets (Including trading purchase 3895.210 MT) as against 
production of 101435.895 MT Steel Bars (including trading purchase of 32939.740 MT) and 
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18882.475 MT Ingots/Billets (Including trading purchase 4147.995 MT) during the corresponding 
period of last year. 

  
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 
Ms. Shikha Charkraborty, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar and Mr. Sampat Lal are the Independent Directors of 
the Company. The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under 
Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in 
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 introduced the concept of CSR pursuant to Section 135 while the eligibility 
criteria doesn’t cover your Company however, the CSR is an integral part of the Company's activities. 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 
 
In pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers)Rules, 2014 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in order to ensure that the activities 
of the Director(s) and employee(s) are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of 
highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior, the Company has 
adopted a Vigil Mechanism policy. This policy has been prepared for directors and employees to report 
their genuine concerns in the interest of the Company and its stakeholders. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION: 
 
As per Section 177(2) and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the composition of Audit Committee as on 31st March, 2021 is as follows: 
 

NAME DESIGNATION  CATEGORY 
Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar Chairman Independent Director 
Ms. Shikha Chakraborty Member Independent Director 
Mr. Anurag Rathi Member Managing Director 

 
STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 
 STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 M/s. Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Delhi (FRN.:003569C) have tendered 

their resignation from the position of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 onwards 
due to their pre-occupation, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of 
the Company as envisaged by section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"). Casual vacancy 
caused by the resignation of auditor can be filled by the shareholders in General Meeting within 
three months from the date of recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company. To fill 
the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, the Board of Directors of the Company recommended that M/s. Gupta Jalan & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN :00372IN) be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of five years commencing from the conclusion of 28th AGM held on 
September 29, 2021 until the conclusion of 33rd AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2026. 

 
 M/s. Gupta Jalan & Associates, Chartered Accountants have conveyed their consent to be 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company along with a confirmation that, their 
appointment, if made by the members, would be within the limits prescribed under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
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 AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
 
 The Auditors’ Report for financial year 2020-2021 does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark and therefore do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report is 
enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

 
 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 
 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company appointed 
M/s PWR Associates, Company Secretaries, Delhi, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the 
Company. 

 
  SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT: 
 
 The Secretarial Auditors’ Report for financial year 2020-2021 is annexed herewith as Annexure A 

which is self-explanatory and doesn’t require comments of the Directors on the same. 
 
 INTERNAL AUDITOR: 
 
 Mr. Jagdish Chugh, Accounts Manager, performs the duties of Internal Auditor of the Company and 

his Report is reviewed by The Audit Committee from time to time. 
 
 COST AUDITORS: 
 Pursuant to Section 148(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records 

and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Company is required to get its cost accounting records 
audited by a Cost Auditor. The Company has appointed M/s Avnesh Jain & Co. (Cost Accountants) 
to undertake the Cost Audit of the Company. 

 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
 
In compliance with Section 92(3), Section 134 (3) (A) and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 the extract of the Annual Return is placed on the website of the 
company. The web address is rathisteel.com and web link is http://www.rathisteels.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/09/RBL_MGT9_21.pdf 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans or given guarantees or made 
investments. However, the details of investments already made by the Company are as follow: 
 
S. 
No. 

Name of Party Particulars of 
Investments 

Nature Purpose for which it 
shall be used 

Amount 
(in Rs) 

1. Hindustan Motors 
Ltd. 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 6,67,110.41 

2. Jai Prakash  
Associates Ltd 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 12,74,836.89 

3. IDBI Limited Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 1,75,066.21 

4. Reliance Industries 
Ltd 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 19,62,633.95 

5. Reliance Power Ltd Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 1,65,082.80 

6. Mohan Finance 
Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 16,779.00 
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7. Ushita Trading 
Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 1,78,965.00 

8. Nagesh Investment 
Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 1,12,408.00 

9. Limitex Investment 
Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 43,665.00 

10. Ecowave Infotech 
Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 13,974.00 

11. Twenty First 
Century (I) Ltd 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 39,474.00 

12. Quest Finance 
Services Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 12,657.00 

13. Jindal Steel& 
Power Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 6,200.00 

14. Gordhan Das Rathi 
Steels Limited 

Purchase of 
Shares 

Investment Revenue generation 766289.00 

15. National Saving 
Certificate (NSCs) 

Purchase of 
securities 

Investment Revenue generation 6405.00 

TOTAL 54,41,547 
 
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 
 
During the year, your Company maintained harmonious and cordial industrial relations. 

 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN 
FUTURE:  
 
During the year under review, there have been no such significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Corporation in future. 
 
STATUS OF LISTING: 
 
The Company’s shares are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. The Company has paid the listing fees 
to the Stock Exchange, Mumbai for the year 2020-2021. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
Your Company has not invited or accepted any deposits from the Public during the year and there 
were no unpaid and unclaimed deposits as on March 31, 2021. Hence, no information is required to be 
appended to this Report in terms of Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits 
(Reserve Bank of India Directions, 1998). 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
None of the Employee was drawing remuneration in excess of the limits laid by the Companies Act, 
2013 as specified under Rule 5(2) and Rule 5 (3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO: 
 
The manufacturing unit of the Company has continued their efforts to reduce their energy 
consumption year on year. Some of the key measures taken by the Company are as follows: 
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Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, our Director furnish following information as required. 
 

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
 

The Company is using best technology available for conservation of energy and had taken 
adequate steps to improve the conservation of energy and this is a continuous process and 
forms an integral part of responsibilities of departmental heads. 

 
Some of the energy conservation steps taken are as follow: 
i) Optimum Capacity utilization. 
ii) Optimization of pump and motor operations through standard operating practices. 
iii) Strict quality checks on inputs thus saving electricity consumption. 
iv) Minimization of handling losses. 
v) Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production is optimum 

as per industry standards. 
 

B) During the year under review, the Company has consumed 4211.830 MT steam coal, 
61,69,818 units of Electricity and 5400 litre of Diesel. 

 
C) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

 
The Company is using technology, which is best available in the Steel Industry (TMT) and 
always step forward to upgrade the same. 
 

 
D) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (IN Rs): 

 
During the year under review: 
 
Foreign Exchange Earned:  NIL 
Foreign Exchange Outgo:  NIL (Previous Year INR 12, 80,365 /-) 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
A report on Corporate Governance, a Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company M/s. 
Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming the compliance with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Managing Director’s Report 
are made part of the Annual Report.  
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
Related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party 
transactions with the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could 
have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company. Transactions with related parties are 
exceeding the limits approved by the shareholders however, transactions entered by the Company in 
the normal course of business are periodically placed before the Audit Committee for its omnibus 
approval and the particulars of contracts entered during the year as per Form AOC-2 is enclosed as 
Annexure-B. 
 
DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
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To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013:  
 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year 2020-2021, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material 
departures; 

 
ii) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
State of Affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 31st March, 2021 and of the Profit & 
Loss of the Company for that period; 

 
iii) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
iv) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
 
v) the Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed in the Company and that 

such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
 
vi) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Board Members were informed about risk assessment and minimization 
procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring 
the Risk Management Policy for the Company. 
 
The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to 
promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the 
business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined 
approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues. 
 
In today’s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in 
accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks inter alia are: 
Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and 
expansion of facilities. 
 
Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk etc. 
 
As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL: 
 
The Board has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized 
use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to 
the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly 
maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The Internal Auditor of the 
Company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy 
adopted by the Company. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:  
 
The Company has no female employee in the Company and therefore, no separate committee has been 
constituted as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. However, the Board of Directors is very vigilant on the same issue 
and complaint, if any, is strictly handled by the Board. The Company did not receive any complaint 
during the year 2020-2021. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
 
The Board of Directors place on record sincere gratitude and appreciation for all the employees at all 
levels for their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and dedication during the year. The Board conveys 
its appreciation for its customers, shareholders, suppliers as well as vendors, bankers, business 
associates, regulatory and government authorities for their continued support. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
         Sd/- 
Anurag Rathi 
(Managing Director) 
DIN:00063345 

 
 
 

    By order of the Board of 
Directors 

FOR RATHI BARS LIMITED 
 

                                      Sd/- 
Uddhav Rathi 

(WTD and CFO) 
DIN: 06604905 
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Annexure-A 
FORM No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the  
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To,  
 
The Members,  
Rathi Bars Limited  
A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate  
Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 
 

CIN: L74899DL1993PLC054781 
Authorized Capital: Rs. 18.00 Crore 

 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Rathi Bars Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information/representations provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit. 
 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021, according to the 
provisions of:  

 
(i)   The Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder;  

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings.  

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period); 
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e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 
(vi) The other laws as applicable specifically on the Company: - 
  

1. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules and standards made there 
under. 

2. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water (Prevention and Control of 
Pollution) Rules, 1975. 

3. Environment Protection Act, 1986 and the rules, notifications issued there under. 
4. Factories Act, 1948 and allied State Laws. 

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, effective from 

01.07.2015 
 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange. 
 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 
 
1. That the Company has filed the respective forms, returns, documents and resolutions with the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi prescribed under the Act and rules made there under. 
 

2. That the Board has duly met 6 (Six) times i.e. on 31.07.2020, 04.09.2020, 15.09.2020, 13.11.2020, 
21.01.2021 and 13.02.2021 during the year. Audit Committee also met 5 (five) times on 
31.07.2020, 04.09.2020, 15.09.2020, 13.11.2020 and 13.02.2021.; Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee duly met 2 (Two) times on 04.09.2020 and 21.01.2021; Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee duly met once on 04.09.2020 during the year. 

 
3. The Company was not required to deposit the unclaimed amounts pending for more than seven 

years to the Investor Education and Protection Fund pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 
4. The Company has Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; 
 
5. Mr. Amit Kumar Mangla resigned from the post of the Company Secretary w.e.f 21st May,2020. 

Later, Mr. Satinder Singh was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f 21st January,2021. 
  
6. Managerial Remuneration has been paid to the Managing Director, Mr Anurag Rathi, during the 

year. 
 

7. The Company has entered into business transactions with related parties in the normal course of 
business at arm’s length, but in one case, the quantum of transactions is beyond the limits 
approved by the shareholders. 
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8. That the shares of the Company are in dematerialized form with the depositories and an 
agreement between the Company and the Depository has been entered initially in the year 2007 
and amended/revised from time to time; 

 
9. The Company received a notice from the Bombay Stock Exchange for non-compliance of various 

regulations of SEBI (LODR), 2015 on 14.12.2020 imposing a penalty of Rs. 38,58,560 (including GST) 
and freezing of Demat accounts of the promoters wherein a detailed reply was submitted to the 
satisfaction of the BSE due to which penalty to the extent of Rs. 31,49,380/- was waived off on 
01.01.2021 and rest of the amount was deposited under protest seeking hearing opportunity and 
defreezing of Demat accounts of the Promoters. 

 
We further report that: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting.  
 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period the company has no other specific event required to 
be reported except above mentioned. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 02.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

For PWR Associates 
    Company Secretaries 

         
Sd/- 

Poonam Wadhwa 
     C. P. No: 5431 

                                                    UDIN:   F005431C000881451  

 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure 1 to the 
Report” and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure 1 to the Secretarial Audit Report ’ 
 
To, 
 
The Members 
Rathi Bars Limited 
New Delhi 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2020-21 is to be read along with this 
letter.  
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that 
the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 
 
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  
 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedure on test basis.  

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 02.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

For PWR Associates 
    Company Secretaries 

         
Sd/- 

Poonam Wadhwa 
     C. P. No: 5431 
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Annexure-B 
FORM NO. AOC -2 

 
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Section 134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:  

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 
S. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Rathi Special Steels Ltd. 

b) Nature of Relationship Common Management (Group Company) 
c)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 
Purchase and sale of goods 

c)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 
transaction 

Rs. 72.03 crore for the financial year 2020-21. 

d)       Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Sale and purchase of billets, ingots and/or steels 
bars at arm’s length to the extent of Rs. 100 
crore per year 

e) Justification for entering into such 
contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Easy availability of goods and quality/payment 
assurance 

e)        Date of approval by the Board 04.09.2020 
f)         Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 
3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 
S. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Bhiwadi Iron Private Limited. 

b) Nature of Relationship Common Management (Group Company) 
c)       Nature of contracts/arrangements/ 

transaction 
Purchase and sale of goods 

S. No. Particulars Details 
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship 

NA 

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction 
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, 

if any 
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ 
f) Date of approval by the Board 
g) Amount paid as advances, if any 
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188 
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d)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ 
transaction 

Rs. 24.62 crore for the financial year 2020-21 

e)       Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Sale and purchase of billets, ingots and/or steels 
bars at arm’s length to the extent of Rs. 10 crore 
per year 

f) Justification for entering into such 
contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Easy availability of goods and quality/ payment 
assurance 

g)        Date of approval by the Board 04.09.2020 
h)         Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 
4. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 
S. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Khushkhera Steels Private Limited. 

b) Nature of Relationship Common Management (Group Company) 
c)       Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
Purchase and sale of goods 

d)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements 
/  transaction 

Rs. 0.00 crore for the financial year 2020-21. 

e)       Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Sale and purchase of billets, ingots and/or steels 
bars at arm’s length to the extent of Rs. 10 crore 
per year 

f) Justification for entering into such 
contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Easy availability of goods and quality/ payment 
assurance 

g)        Date of approval by the Board 04.09.2020 
h)         Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

 
5. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 

 
S. No. Particulars Details 
a)        Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship 
Balaji Steel Enterprises. 

b) Nature of Relationship Proprietorship firm of Managing Director 
c)       Nature of 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
Purchase and sale of goods 

d)        Duration of the contracts/arrangements 
/ transaction 

Rs. 4.23 crore for the financial year 2020-21. 

e)       Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

Sale and purchase of billets, ingots and/or steels 
bars at arm’s length to the extent of Rs. 25 crore 
per year 

f) Justification for entering into such 
contracts or arrangements or 
transactions 

Easy availability of goods and quality/ payment 
assurance 

g)        Date of approval by the Board 04.09.2020 
h)         Amount paid as advances, if any NA 

*All related party transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and are 
approved by Audit Committee of the Company. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
OPERATIVE VIEW 
 
The operating and financial review is intended to convey the Management’s perspective on the 
financial and operating performance of the Company at the end of Financial Year 2020-2021. This 
report should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements, the schedules and notes 
thereto and the other information included elsewhere in the Integrated Report. The Company’s 
financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013, Indian Accounting Standards and the guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI). 
 
This report is an integral part of the Directors’ Report. Aspects on industry structure and 
developments, opportunities and threats, outlook, risks and concerns, internal control systems and 
their adequacy, material developments in human resources and industrial relations have been covered 
in the Directors’ Report. 
 
STEEL INDUSTRY 
 
India’s steel industry has also suffered the production loss due to lockdown last year and recovered 
gradually since then, initially driven by export followed by gradual recovery in domestic demand. 
Strong rebound in manufacturing and infrastructure development activity has led to a sharp rise in 
both production and consumption of steel in India. In 2021, India’s steel demand is expected to grow 
by 20% over 2020, taking the demand higher than the pre-pandemic level of 103 MnT, driven by 
strong infrastructure spending and sustained demand of automotive and consumer durables. 
 
Government Initiates  
Some of the other recent Government initiatives in this sector are as follows: 

 Government’s focus on strengthening the domestic manufacturing base under the flagship 
“Atmanirbhar Bharat” programme. The Production Linked Incentive scheme has been introduced 
to boost the manufacturing sector in industries like automobile & auto components, consumer 
durables, solar equipment, telecom, etc. These are expected to boost steel consumption. 

 Government has announced an investment of over ₹1 trillion in infrastructure over the next 5 
years. This would be a key growth driver not only for steel industry but will also be a multiplier of 
growth across the sectors, boosting steel demand from sectors such as transportation, real estate 
and infrastructure. 

 Emergence of new trends after COVID-19 such as work from home, preference to physical 
distancing would create additional demand for furniture, personal mobility, etc. In addition, the 
rise in e-commerce activity will support the growth of warehousing and light commercial vehicles. 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 
 
The global economy contracted by 3.3% in FY2020-21 primarily on account of the worldwide adverse 
impact of COVID Pandemic. On top of that, stricter trade restrictions and geo-political uncertainties 
also weighed on. However, a better than expected recovery in the latter half of the year helped in the 
improvement of the earlier estimates. Continuing with the recovery seen during the latter half of CY 
2021, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected a sharper improvement in global GDP 
growth rate of 6% in CY2021 in its July World Economic Outlook (WEO) update and a moderate 
growth rate of 4.9% in CY2022. While, the GDP growth for Advanced Economies is likely to be 5.6% 
and 4.4%, Emerging and developing economies are likely to grow at 6.3% and 5.2% for CY2021 and 
CY2022 respectively. 
 
 

33



RATHI BARS LIMITED 
 

 
 

INDIAN ECONOMY 
 
FY2021 started with unprecedented challenges induced by COVID- 19 pandemic. Nation-wide 
lockdown to contain the spread of the virus had a severe impact on the economic activity during the 
Q1FY21. The subsequent easing of lockdown along with various incentives by the center and 
respective state governments, NGOs, civic bodies, etc. helped in restarting of business activities. 
 
Recovery started gaining momentum in Q2FY21 and a rebound in economic activities was witnessed in 
Q3FY21 and Q4FY21. Early imposition of lockdown and maintaining it for longer duration unlike in the 
US and Europe, helped in containing the spread and thus faster economic recovery. 
 
For FY2021, India’s GDP contracted by 7.3% as per the International Monetary Fund (IMF). However, 
in FY2022 and FY2023, India’s GDP growth is likely to be one of the fastest among major economies of 
the World. 
 
OUTLOOK  
 
The accelerating rollout of COVID-19 vaccines in many advanced economies has set the stage for rapid 
recovery in the second half of this year and into 2022. Advanced economies will remain less affected 
by the virus this year and beyond, with low-income countries and emerging markets suffering more 
which is a contrast to 2009. While, the global economy is expected to recover to its pre-pandemic level 
of output in 2022, the emerging-market and developing economies are expected to take until 2023 to 
recover to the pre-pandemic level. 
 
STATUTORY COMPLIANCE 
 
The Managing Director and the Whole time Director & CFO (Finance& Corporate) make a declaration 
at each Board Meeting regarding compliance with provisions of various statutes after obtaining 
confirmation from respective departments of the Company. The Company Secretary ensures 
compliance with all corporate laws and listing rules applicable to the Company.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Risk management is embedded in the Company’s framework. The management believes that managing 
risk helps in maximizing return. The Company recognizes the emerging risks that need to be 
maintained and mitigated in order to protect the interest of stakeholders and ensure sustainable 
growth. Management policies, processes, inbuilt controls, market research and MIS are duly carried to 
ensure effective risk management.  
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company maintains a formal system of Internal Control to ensure efficient and effective utilization 
of resources, operational effectiveness and statutory/regulatory compliances. The Internal Audit team 
monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, based 
on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action(s) in their 
respective area(s) and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective 
action(s) thereon are presented to the Audit Committee. 
 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 
 
During the year under review, the Company recorded a profit after tax of Rs. 231.10 Lakhs (previous 
year: Rs. 272.09 Lakhs). The basic and diluted earnings per share for the Financial Year 2020-2021 
were at 1.42 per share (previous year: basic and diluted earning per share at 1.67 per share). 
 
The turnover and profit/(loss) figures of Rathi Bars Limited are given below:  
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In Lakhs 
 20-21 19-20 
Turnover 32,374.51 38,300.50 
EBITDA 1221.78 1,201.60 
Profit before tax (PBT) 303.47 287.37 
Profit after tax (PAT) 231.10 272.09 

 
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT  
 
The Company has established a robust Human Resources (‘HR’) system that nurtures a conducive and 
productive work culture. Improving employee productivity is of utmost importance to the 
organisation. 
 
DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION 
 
Digitalization has been one of the most focused areas for the Management. The Company has pursued 
digital transformation to optimize its functional and operational efficiency. It has emphasized on 
building and strengthening its Information and Communication Technology (‘ICT’) capabilities over 
the past few years. With a fully integrated IT enterprise system in place, the Company seamlessly 
caters to all its business functions. It further endeavors to adopt cutting-edge technology solutions to 
improve its decision-making efficiency and accuracy. 
 
CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY 
 
Sustainability has always been the cornerstone of the Company’s business strategy. The Company is 
achieving environment sustainability by:  
 Undertaking water replenishment projects in the community surrounding our factories  
 Reducing non-process water consumption by focusing on reduction in freshwater usage as well as 

collection of rainwater to use in the manufacturing process after purification  
 Reducing energy consumption in operations, while improving efficiency and quality in production  
 Increasing the contribution of renewable sources thus demonstrating the commitment of sourcing 

clean energy  
 Minimizing solid and liquid waste in our processes 
 
IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE COMPANY 
 

1. Impact of Covid on business 
The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has led to an unprecedented health crisis and has 
disrupted economic activities and global trade, while weighing on consumer sentiments. 
During the year under review, the Government of India had imposed stringent nationwide 
lockdowns, in phases, which severely impacted manufacturing activities. Though the Steel and 
Mining sectors were allowed to operate under the Essential Services Maintenance Act, 1968 
they were subject to certain guidelines. Steel demand was affected as key steel consuming 
sectors struggled to operate amidst weakening economic activities, working capital 
constraints, shortage of manpower, and logistical issues. 

 
2. Ability to maintain operations including factories/units/office spaces functioning and 

closed down 
Due to the nationwide lockdown beginning from 24th March, 2020 till 04th May, 2020, the 
Company was not in operation as the factory and office premises remained closed which 
resulted into operations of office and manufacturing unit of the Company came to a halt, which 
is impacting the sales performance of the Company 
 

3. Schedule, if any, for restarting the operations 
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The operations have already started with partial/reduced capacity and according to guidelines 
issued by the Government and local authorities where the plant is located. 
 

4. Steps to ensure smooth functioning operations 
 the Company has taken all the precautionary and safety measures relating to hygiene and 
maintenance of social distancing norms, routine cleaning and disinfection/sanitization, thermal 
screening, mandatory usage of masks and hand gloves and frequent use of sanitizers, use of 
Aarogaya Setu App, creation of awareness among employees, fumigation at intervals, restraint 
on travel, extensive use of video facility in conduction of meetings, etc. 
 

5. Estimation of future impact of Covid-19 on operations 
Due to Covid-19 pandemic, the production ability, revenue from operations and profitability of 
the Company are likely to be impacted and the Company is closely monitoring it and making 
every possible effort to mitigate this. However, it is difficult to estimate the definitive impact of 
COVID- 19 on the operations of the Company beyond 01 of the Financial Year 2020-2021 at this 
point of time. 

 
6. Impact of Covid-19 on 

 
a) Capital and Financial Resources 

Given the present condition, there is no impact on capital and financial resources of the 
Company. 

 
b) Profitability 

The profitability of the Company for the year 2020-21 has been finalized and 
disseminated in public domain on 31st July, 2020. The profitability for the year 2020-
21 will also be at a lower level because of the reduction in sales due COVID-19 
lockdown. 

 
c) Liquidity/ability to service debt 

The Company is facing the liquidity issue at the moment due to slow receipt of funds 
from its customers. The Company is planning to reduce the overhead cost 
appropriately and working double hard on recovery 

 
d) Supply Chain 

With the relaxation in lock down conditions and taking into consideration the 
Government’s policy of progressive resumption of economic activities, it is expected 
that the strain on the supply chain imposed by Covid- 19 shall ease in a gradual manner 
going forward. 

 
e) Demand for the Company’s Products and services 

Taking into consideration the Company’s product profile and its nature of end use 
(steel bars and billets) its demand shall continue to remain robust in the post Covid-19 
situation. 

 
f) Internal Financial reporting and control 

All internal financial reporting and controls have been adequately maintained which 
shall continue 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 

[Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 
 
The end of the year under review saw challenging times for the Company as well as for the world at 
large due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The situation continues to be exceptional and dynamic. The 
regulators including Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) promptly announced many relaxations with respect to the compliance requirements of the 
Companies to facilitate companies to conduct smooth operations and cope with the challenging times. 
The Company appreciates and acknowledges the relaxations and dispensations granted by the MCA 
and SEBI, inter alia, for conduct of Annual General Meeting through electronic mode and dispatch of 
Annual Report electronically to shareholders who have registered their email addresses. These 
relaxations are noteworthy and were the need of the hour 
 
The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for the 
Financial Year 2020-2021. The Shareholders and Investors of the Company will find the information 
informative and useful. 
 
Company’s policies on the Corporate Governance and due Compliance Report on specific areas 
wherever applicable for the year ended 31st March, 2021 are given hereunder divided into the 
following areas: 
 
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:- 
 
The fundamental principle of Corporate Governance is achieving sustained growth ethically and in the 
best interest of all stakeholders. The Company continuously strives for improving performance. The 
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance oversees business strategies and ensures 
accountability, integrity, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all its stakeholders comprising 
regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and society at large. The Company has adopted a 
Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director, Executive Directors and its Non-
Executive Directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which suitably 
incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Company has adhered to the requirements stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27 read with Para C 
and D of Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’) as applicable [including relaxations granted by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (‘SEBI’) in the wake of Covid-19], with regard to Corporate Governance and the same is disclosed 
in this Report. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- 
 
A. Composition and Size of the Board 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is the highest governance authority within the management 
structure of the Company. The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17(1) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
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The composition of the Board of Directors as at 31st March 2021 is as follows: 

 
B. Board meetings held during the year 
 
The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider, amongst other business, the quarterly 
performance of the Company and its financial results. The Board held 6 (Six) times i.e. on 31.07.2020, 
04.09.2020, 15.09.2020, 13.11.2020, 21.01.2021 and 13.02.2021 during the year and the gap between 
any two consecutive meetings was within the limit prescribed under the Act and SEBI LODR. All the 
relevant information needed for taking decisions by the Board is made available to the Directors at the 
meetings.  
 
Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined and moreover, they have confirmed 
that they meet the criteria as mentioned under the regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations read 
with Section 149(6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of independent directors is incompliance with the 
Act.  
 
The Board and its Committees formulate policy decisions, to lead and control the Company. None of 
the Director is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than of 5 Committees 
across all Companies in which they are directors. Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees 
include only Audit committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee.  
 
The details are as under: 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of 
Directors 
 

No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
attended 

Attendance 
at last AGM 

Number of 
Directorship in 
Other public 
companies (s)(*) 

Total Number of 
committee positions 
held in other public 
companies as on 
31.03.2021 

Shareholding 
(Ordinary 
shares of Rs. 
10/- each) as 
on 31.03.2021

    Chair 
man 

Member Chairman Member  

1.  Mr K K Rathi 
(Demised on 
28.12.2020) 

4 YES 1 2 - - - 

1. Mr. Anurag 
Rathi 

6 YES 1 2 Nil Nil 12,16,751  
(7.45%) 

2. Mr. Uddhav 
Rathi 

6 YES - 2 Nil Nil 8,59,330  
(5.26%) 

3. Mr. Ashok 
Kumar Garg 
(Resigned on 
……… 

3 NO - - Nil Nil Nil 

4. Mr. Binod 
Kumar 
Maheshwari 
(Resigned on 

3 NO 1 4 Nil Nil Nil 

Name Designation Executive / Non-executive / 
Independent 

Sh. Anurag Rathi Managing Director Executive 
Sh. Uddhav Rathi Whole-Time Director-CFO Executive 
Sh. Chander Mohan Director Non-Executive 
Smt. Shikha Chakraborty Director Independent Director 
Smt. Sonali V Chitalkar Director Independent Director 
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…………. 

5. Ms. Sonali V 
Chitalkar 

2 NO - - Nil Nil Nil 

6. Ms. Shikha 
Chakraborty 

2 NO - 1 Nil Nil Nil 

7. Mr. Chander 
Mohan 

1 NO - - Nil Nil Nil 

 
* Excludes directorship in associates, private, foreign and Section 8 Companies. 
 
C. Information in cases of appointment or re-appointment as required under listing regulations 

is given as under: 
 
Mr. Chander Mohan retires by rotation and re-appointed as Director of the Company in the AGM. Mr. 
Ashok Kumar Garg and Mr. Binod Kumar Maheshwari resigned from the office of Director w.e.f 21st 
January,2021 and 01st March,2021 respectively. Whereas, Mr. Amit Kumar Mangla resigned from the 
post of Company Secretary w.e.f 21st May,2020 and Mr. Satinder Singh was appointed as Company 
Secretary w.e.f 21st January, 2021. 

D. Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management 
 
The Board of Directors has laid down the Code of Conduct for all the Board members and members of 
the Senior Management of the Company. Additionally, all Independent Directors of the Company shall 
be bound by duties of Independent Directors as set out in the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Schedules and Rules there under. 
 
All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company. 
 
E. Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se: 
 
Mr. Anurag Rathi and Mr. Uddhav Rathi are related to each other being the members of the same 
family and Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar, Ms. Shikha Chakraborty and Mr. Sampat Lal are Independent 
Directors and Mr. Chander Mohan (Non-Executive Director) do not relate to other Directors or inter-
se. 
 
F. Policy of Familiarization Programme: 
 
According to the requirement under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 policy of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors have been 
provided on the website www.rathisteels.com. 
 
G. Key Board Members Qualifications, Expertise and Attributes: 
 
The Directors are committed to ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance. The following key qualifications, skills and attributes are taken into 
consideration by the NRC while recommending appointment of Directors to the Board, namely: 
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Industry knowledge and 
experience 

Experience and knowledge of the functioning, operations, 
changing trends of the industry. 

Technical expertise 
 

Expertise on project handling, market outreach, resource 
management  

Behavioral Competencies 
 

Ability and willingness to work in dynamic environment with 
integrity and ethical standards. 

Management and leadership 
skills 
 

Competent in maintaining public relations, ability to evaluate 
opportunities in the line of Company’s strategies. 

Understanding of financial 
aspects  

Experience in financial management with understanding of 
funding, capital management and financial reporting processes. 

 
BOARD COMMITTEES 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted as per Section 177 of the Companies Act and 
Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to review the 
Internal Audit Systems and it comprises of Independent Directors in compliance of the respective 
Regulation. Initially, Mr. Ashok Kumar Garg, was the Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Anurag Rathi and 
Mr. Binod Kumar Maheshwari are the members of the Committee. Later in the year, the Committee got 
reconstituted wherein, Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar is the Chairman of the Committee, Ms. Shikha 
Chakraborty and Mr. Anurag Rathi are members of the Committee.  Finance Manager/CFO and 
Statutory Auditors are the invitees to the meeting. The terms of reference of this Committee cover the 
matters specified for Audit Committees under Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were 
Five Audit Committee Meetings held during the year. 
 
ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 
 

Name of the Director  Number of Audit Committee 
meetings held  

Number of Audit 
Committee Meetings 
attended 

Mr.  Ashok Kumar Garg - Chairman  

Mr. Binod K Maheshwari   -Member  

Mr. Anurag Rathi - Member  

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

 
Name of the Director  Number of Audit Committee 

meetings held  
Number of Audit 
Committee Meetings 
attended 

Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar - Chairman  

Ms. Shikha Chakraborty -Member  

Mr. Anurag Rathi - Member  

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

 
The major tasks performed by the Audit Committee may be grouped under the following heads: 
 
Statutory audit, internal audit, approval of related party transactions, reporting and other aspects; 
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i.  The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 
Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process. The Committee acts as a link 
between the Management, Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full 
access to the financial Information.  

 
ii Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and 
ensuring timely submission to statutory authorities.  
 

iii Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 
 

iv Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial 
statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for approval.  
 

v Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system and internal control.  
 

vi Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management systems.  
 

vii To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.  
 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) of the Company is constituted in accordance 
with Section 178 of the Companies  Act and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to give recommendation to the Board regarding appointment/ re-
appointment of the Board of Directors and Independent Directors and to evaluate the performance of 
them and it comprises of Independent Directors and Non- Executive Directors in compliance of the 
respective Regulation.  
 
The terms of reference of this Committee cover the matters specified for Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee under Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as in Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Two Meetings 
of the respective committee were held during the year to consider the appointment of Mr. Satinder 
Singh, Company Secretary, Mr. Anurag Rathi as the Managing Director and Mr. Uddhav Rathi as WTD/ 
CFO.  
 
The terms of reference of the committee are as follows:- 
 
i.  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 

of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 
Directors, key Managerial Personnel and other employees;  

 
ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;  

 
iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity;  
 
iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal.  

 
v. The Remuneration Policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration 

according to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. 
The workers at the factory as well as those rendering clerical, administrative and professional 
services are suitably remunerated according to the industry norms.  
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The details of the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:  
 

S. 
No. 

Name Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation 
in Committee 

Attendance in  
NCR committee

No of NRC 
meetings 
attended 

1 Mr. B. K. Maheshwari Independent Director Chairman Yes 1 

2 Mr. Ashok Kumar 
Garg 

Independent Director Member Yes 1 

3 Mr. Uddhav Rathi WTD -Director Member Yes 1 

 
S. 
No. 

Name Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation 
in Committee 

Attendance in  
NCR 
committee 

No of NRC 
meetings 
attended 

1 Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar  Independent Director Chairman Yes 1 

2 Ms. Shikha 
Chakraborty 

Independent Director Member Yes 1 

3 Mr. Uddhav Rathi WTD-Director Member Yes 1 

 
FORMULATION OF POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR 
REMUNERATION 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed and thereafter decided upon the policy for 
selection of appointment of directors and their remuneration. The highlights of this policy are as 
follows: 
 
1. Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors  

 
1.1. Letter of appointment shall be  issued based  on  the  recommendations  of  the Committee on 

the basis of the guidelines for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 or the Company 
Internal policy.  

1.2. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 
experience for appointment to the position of Directors, KMPs & Senior Management.  

1.3. A potential candidate should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the 
position he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee shall review qualifications, 
expertise and experience, as well as the ethical and moral qualities possessed by such person, 
commensurate to the requirement for the position.  

1.4. The Committee shall determine the suitability of appointment of a person to the Board of 
Directors of the Company by ascertaining the ‘fit and proper criteria’ of the candidate. The 
candidate shall, at the time of appointment, as well as at the time of renewal of directorship, 
fill in such form as approved by the Committee to enable the Committee to determine the ‘Fit 
and Proper Criteria’.  

1.5. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as whole-time 
director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person 
holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 
shareholders by passing a  special  resolution  based  on  the explanatory  statement annexed  
to  the  notice  for  such  motion  indicating  the justification for extension of appointment 
beyond seventy years. 

1.6. The Committee shall ensure that there  is  an  appropriate  induction  &  training programme 
in place for new directors, members of senior management, and KMP 
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1.7. The Committee shall making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating 
to the continuation in office of any director at any time including the suspension or 
termination of service of an executive director as an employee of the Company subject to the 
provision of the law and their service contract.  

1.8. The Committee shall recommend any necessary changes to the Board. 
 
2. REMUNERATION  

 
2.1. In discharging its responsibilities, the committee shall have regard to the following policy 

objectives: - 
 To ensure the Company’s remuneration structures are equitable and aligned with the long-

term interests of the Company and its shareholders; 
 To attract and retain competent executives;  
 To plan short and long-term incentives to retain talent; 
 To ensure that any severance benefits are justified.  

 
2.2 The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to the whole-time director, KMP and senior 

management & other employees will be determined by the Committee and recommended to 
the Board for approval. 

2.3 The remuneration to be paid to the Managing Director shall be in accordance with the 
percentage/slabs/conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as 
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. 

2.4 Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure of the Senior Management 
excluding the Board of Directors comprising of members of Management one level below the 
Executive Directors, including the Functional Heads will be decided by the Chairman & 
Managing Director. 
 

2.5 Remuneration to Whole-time/ Managing Director, KMP, senior management;  
 

2.5.1  FIXED PAY: 
                 The MD and/or Whole Time Director / KMP and senior management shall be eligible 

for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation 
of the Committee and the shareholders wherever applicable. The breakup of  the  pay  
scale  and  quantum  of  perquisites  including,  employer’s contribution towards 
provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees and other perquisites 
shall be decided and approved  by the Board on  the recommendation of the 
Committee.  

 
2.5.2 MINIMUM REMUNERATION: 
 
                 If in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, it 

shall pay remuneration to its MD in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and if the Company is not able to comply with such 
provisions, previous approval of the Central Government shall be required to be 
obtained. However, no remuneration has been paid to the Managerial persons during 
the year. 

 
2.6 Remuneration to Non-Executive/ Independent Director:- 

 
2.6.1 REMUNERATION: 

Remuneration is paid Sh Anurag Rathi Managing Director Rs 29,15,000/- of the 
Company. 
 

2.6.2 SITTING FEES: 
No sitting fee is paid to the non-executive and Independent Directors of the Company.    
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STAKE-HOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
The Stake-Holder’s Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted as per Regulation 20 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to give recommendation to look 
after the redressal of Shareholders and Investors Grievances and approves transfer/transmission, sub-
division and issue of duplicate share certificates etc. The Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer 
Agents handle the investor grievances in consultation with the Compliance Officer of the Company. The 
Registrars have adequate skilled staff with potential qualifications and advanced computer systems for 
speedy redressal of the investor grievances. 
 
The details of composition of the Committee are as under: 
 

S. No. Name Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 
1. Ms. Sonali V Chitalkar  Independent Director Chairman 

2. Ms. Shikha Chakra 
borty 

Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Uddhav Rathi Whole Time Director Member 

 
The total process of settlement of a complaint right from its receipt to disposal is fully computerized to 
ensure timely settlement. It normally takes 10-15 days from the receipt of complaint for disposal of 
investor grievance. 
 
The Company has not received any complaint during the year and there is no pending complaint as on 
date. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING: 
 
During the year under review, Independent Director meeting was held on 25.03.2021 wherein, all 
independent directors attended the meeting. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate 
the performance of Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on 
parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby 
safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors 
was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Board also carried out 
annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as 
Stakeholder Relationship Committee. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 
process. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
All transactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year were in the ordinary course 
of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the 
financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. However, the quantum of 
transaction was more than the limits approved by the shareholders of the Company. Suitable 
disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS-18) has been made in the notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
 
The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the 
Company’s website, www.rathisteels.com. 
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PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. 
 
DISCLOSURES: 
 
The Company has always ensured fair code of conduct and maintained transparency. There were no 
instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets during the last 
three years whereas the Company received a notice on 14.12.2020 for non-compliance of SEBI (LODR), 
2015, demat account of promoters were freezed and a penalty of Rs 38,58,600/- was imposed and 
after submitting the detailed reply, penalty to the extent of 31,49,420/- was waived off on 01.01.2021 
and an amount of Rs. 7, 09,180/- was paid under protest to defreeze the demat accounts of the 
promoter and hearing opportunity which is still pending with BSE. 
 
In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a vigil mechanism has been adopted by the Board of directors and 
accordingly a whistle blower policy has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for 
employees of the Company to approach Internal Auditor or Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
Company to report any grievance. A link to such policy is also provided in the website of the Company. 
 
Compliances, rules & regulations as laid down by various statutory authorities has always been 
observed by the Company since such change over both in letter as well as in spirit. 
 
The Board has obtained certificates/disclosures from key management personnel confirming, they do 
not have any material financial and commercial interest in transactions with the Company at large. 
COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS: 
 
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
notified pursuant to Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant 
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with General Circular 8/2014 dated April 04, 2014, issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The significant accounting policies which are consistently applied 
have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
The Company has paid a fee of Rs. 1, 15,000 (Rupees One Lakh Fifteen Thousand) to the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company for all his services including statutory audit. 
 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 
The General Meetings of the last three years of the Company have been held as under: 
 

For the 
Year 

Location Day and Date Time No. of Special  
Resolutions 
passed 

2019-2020 
(AGM) 

A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 
Industrial Estate, Mathura 
Road, New Delhi-110044 

Monday, 
29th September, 2020 

10:00 AM 2 

2018-2019 
(AGM) 

A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 
Industrial Estate, Mathura 
Road, New Delhi-110044 

Monday, 
30th September, 2019 

10:00 AM 5 

2017-2018 
(AGM) 

A-24/8, Mohan Co-Operative 
Industrial Estate, Mathura 
Road, New Delhi-110044 

Saturday, 
29th September, 2018 

10:00 AM 3 
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No Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders was held during the year however, 
shareholders resolution was passed through postal ballot. 
 
There is no resolution proposed to be passed through postal ballot in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 
 
The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly un-audited/Audited financial results of the Company were 
published in leading newspapers viz. Veer Arjun (Hindi) and Pioneer (English). Half-yearly results are 
not sent to each shareholder’s address as a matter of economy and due to covid19 Pendemic. Annual 
Report is sent to all the shareholders through email and submitted to BSE from where Annual Report 
can be downloaded free of cost in PDF format from company’s website also. 
 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION: 
 

 
MARKET INFORMATION 
 
Market Price Data as compared to closing Sensex during 2020-2021: 

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)  L74899DL1993PLC054781 
Registered Office  A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estates, 

Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 
Annual General Meeting 
 

 
 

 

Day, Date and Time :       Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 04.30 P. M. 

Venue :  The Company is conducting meeting through Video 
Conference / Other Audio-Visual Means pursuant to 
the MCA Circular dated 5th May, 2020 and as such 
there is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM. 
For details please refer to the Notice of this AGM 

Financial Calendar   
Financial Year  :  01st April, 2020  to 31st March, 2021 
First Quarter Results  : 15th September, 2020 
Second Quarter Results : 13th November, 2020 
Third Quarter Results : 13th February, 2021 

Fourth Quarter Results : 30th Day of June, 2021 
Annual General Meeting for the year  
ending March 31, 2020 

: 29th September, 2020 

 
Date of Book Closure 

 
:   

 
25th to 29th September 2020 (both days inclusive) 

Dividend Payment Date : NA 
 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 
 
 

: Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.  
Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai-400 001 

Scrip Code : 532918 

ISIN for Depositories :    INE575101016 
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SHAREHOLDING NO. OF 
SHAREHOLDERS 

%AGE NO. OF SHARES % AGE TO TOTAL 

Upto-5000 5,284 73.54 1002837 6.14 
5001-10000 1056 14.70 829450 5.08 

10001-20000 500 6.96 724819 4.44 
20001-30000 121 1.68 310187 1.90 
30001-40000 44 0.61 159636 0.98 
40001-50000 35 0.49 165933 1.01 

50001-100000 58 0.81 411476 2.52 
100001-Above 87 1.21 12726019 77.93 
TOTAL 7,185 100.00 16330357 100.00 

 
PHYSICAL/NSDL/CDSL -SUMMARY REPORT AS ON 31.03.2021: 
 

PARTICULARS HOLDERS SHARES PERCENTAGE (%) 

PHYSICAL 6 38 0.00 

NSDL 3911 1,37,98,516 84.50 

CDSL 3329 25,31,803 15.50 

TOTAL 7,246 1,63,30,357 100.00 

* 61 holders are common in demat & physical 
 
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2021: 
                             

CATEGORY NO. OF HOLDERS NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE % 
OF HOLDING 

PROMOTER & PROMOTER 
GROUP 

22 1,04,53,112 64.01 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 1 173 0.00 
CLEARING MEMBER 23 47,443 0.29 
NON-RESIDENT INDIAN 55 1,16,016 0.71 
BODIES CORPORATE 22 1,96,598 1.20 
INDIVIDUALS 7062 55,17,015 33.79 
TOTAL 7185 1,63,30,357 100.00 

 

Market Price Data 
 

Bombay Stock Exchange 
 

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) 
April 20 9.87 7.68 
May 20 9.64 7.05 
June 20 10.17 7.26 

     July 20 10.18 7.26 
Aug. 20 13.47 8.62 
Sept. 20 12.7 9.89 

 

 Market Price Data 
 

                Bombay Stock Exchange 
 

Month High(Rs.) Low (Rs.) 
Oct. 21 11.96 9.05 

 Nov. 20 12 9.26 
Dec. 20 18.2 11.21 
Jan. 21 25.35 15.15 
Feb. 21 21.65 17.2 
Mar. 21 19.5 15.75 

 

 
DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2021  
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DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES: 
 
Break up of shares in physical and demat form as on 31st March, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Particulars No. of Shares     % of Total No. of Shares 
Physical Segment 38 0.00 
Demat Segment 1,63,30,319 100.00 
NSDL-1,35,91,735 - - 
CDSL-    27,38,584 - - 
Total 1,63,30,357 100 

 
OUTSTANDING INSTRUMENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON EQUITY: 

 
There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs or warrants or any other convertible instrument as on 
31.03.2021. 

 
COMMODITY PRICE RISK OR FOREIGN EXCHNAGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITES: 
 
The above-mentioned clause is not applicable on the Company. 
 
IN CASE THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY ARE SUSPENDED FROM TRADING, THE REASONS 
THEREOF: 
 
Not Applicable 
 
IMPACT OF LOCKDOWN ON SHARE RELATED OPERATIONS: 
 
In CY2021, as per the ISSF, India registered a total stainless-steel melt shop production of 3.17 million 
tonnes, witnessing a decline of 19% year-on-year. This sharp decline was due to significant slowdown 
in economic activities on account of nationwide lockdown and other restrictions to counter the spread 
of COVID- 19 pandemic. However, backed by a V-shaped recovery, the demand scenario began 
improving from July’21 onward. The lockdown restrictions imposed by the Government of India to 
counter the spread of COVID – 19 pandemic and other restrictive measures taken by the State 
Government on use of public transport, on operations of the postal services as well as their office area 
being demarcated as a red zone, from time to time, allowed for only critical business operations and 
largely impacted its regular operations. SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/RTAMB/ 
CIR/P/2020/59 dated 13th April, 2020, extended the timelines for processing of various investor 
requests pertaining to physical securities and compliance & disclosures to be made under SEBI 
Regulations and various SEBI circulars. The relaxation was being given to intermediaries / market 
participants, including Registrar and share Transfer Agent for equivalent period of lock down declared 
by the Government of India, over and above the prescribed time limits. 
 
Accordingly, all the request(s) received from the shareholders and pending with the Company or its 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent would be addressed in accordance with the timelines/ relaxations 
as provided by the Statutory Authorities. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 
All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 during the 
financial year were on arm’s length basis and do not attract the provisions of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during 
the year. 
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As required under Regulation 23(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with the Related Party 
Transactions. The policy is available on the website: www.rathisteels.com 
 
NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
There are no instances of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report. The 
Company has been regularly submitting the quarterly compliance report to the Stock Exchange as 
required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
PLANT LOCATION: 

 
SP 1-7, RIICO Industrial Area, Khushkhera (Bhiwadi), P.O. Tapukra-301707, Distt. Alwar, Rajasthan 
 
REGISTER & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 

 
MAS Services Limited, T-34, Second Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase II New Delhi-110020  
Ph: 011-26387281-83, Email: sm@masserv.com 
 
VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY: 
 
The Vigil Mechanism Policy adopted by the Company is in line with section 177(9) and (10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
which is a mandatory requirement and has been posed on the Company’s website, 
www.rathisteels.com 

 
UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR QUALIFIED 
INSTITIUTIONS PLACEMENT AS SPECIFIED UNDER REGULATION 32(7A): 

 
No funds were raised by the Company through Preferential allotment or by way of Qualified Intuitions 
Placement during the financial year, 2020-2021. 
 
LIST OF CREDIT RATINGS OBTAINED: 

 
The list of credit rating(s) obtained by the Company along with revisions thereto during the financial 
year, 2020-2021 is furnished below: 

 
Particular Rating month Rating during FY 2020-2021 
CRISIL LIMITED May, 2020 BBB 

 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PRHOBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 
a) No. of claims filed during the financial year: 0 
b) No. of complaints disposed off during the financial year: 0 
c) No. of complaints pending as on 31.03.2021: 0 
 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
Shareholders correspondence may be addressed to:  
 

The Registrar & Transfer Agent - 
 
MAS Services Limited,  
T-34, Second Floor, Okhla Industrial  

The Company - 
 
Rathi Bars Limited,  
A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial  
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Area, Phase II New Delhi-110020  
Ph:011-26387281-83 
Email:sm@masserv.com 

Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044 
Ph: 011-43165400 
Email:rathibars@hotmail.com 
 

 
SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM: 
 
The Company’s shares are in demat mode. The shares received for transfer in physical mode are 
registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear 
in all respect. 
 
CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES: 

 
As required under regulation 34(3) and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has obtained certificate from Practicing Company 
secretary, which forms part of the Annual report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

 
 
 
          Sd/- 
Anurag Rathi 
(Managing Director) 
DIN:00063345 

    By order of the Board of 
Directors 

FOR RATHI BARS LIMITED 
 

                                      Sd/- 
Uddhav Rathi 

(WTD and CFO) 
DIN: 06604905 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the  
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
      To, 

The Members of 
 Rathi Bars Limited 

 
      Sir, 
 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 
the Directors of Rathi Bars Limited having CIN L74899DL1993PLC054781 and having 
registered office at A-24/7, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, New Delhi-110044 (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 
10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me / us by the Company & its officers, I/We hereby 
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial 

Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.  

 
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment  

1 Anurag Rathi 00063345 10.08.1993 
2 Uddhav Rathi 06604905 13.02.2014 
3 Chander Mohan 08679269 30.01.2020 
4 Sonali V Chitalkar 07602962 30.09.2016 
5 Shikha Chakraborty 08253713 12.10.2018 
6 Sampat Lal 09186808 02.06.2021 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

For PWR Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
Sd/- 

Poonam Wadhwa 
Practicing Company Secretary 

                                     PCS No: 4717, C P No.: 5431 
UDIN: F005431C000891791 
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Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co.      26/203, II FLOOR, SHAKARPUR 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS                                                     DELHI-110002
    

 
Dear Members, 
Rathi Bars Limited 
New Delhi. 

 
Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Rathi Bars Limited for 
the year ended on March 31, 2021, as required by Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company. 
 
On the basis of our review and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated as per Regulation 17-27 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015:  
 
On the basis of records maintained of the Investors’/ Shareholders’ Grievance cum Share Transfer 
Committee of the Company information provided by the management, we state that no investor 
grievance(s) is/are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

For Ravindra Jyoti Agarwal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 003569C 
 
 

Sd/- 
Sameer Jain 

Partner 
M.No.512653 
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
 
I, Anurag Rathi, Managing Director of Rathi Bars Limited hereby declare that all the members of the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
 

   
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

Anurag Rathi 
 

Sd/- 
(Managing Director) 

DIN:00112321 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 
 

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN 
 
I, Uddhav Rathi, Chief Financial Officer of the Rathi Bars Limited to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, certify to the Board of Directors of the Company as required Regulation 17(8) read 
with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 that: 

 
(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the 

best of their knowledge and belief: 
 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are 
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 
(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company’s code of 
conduct. 

 
(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial 

reporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we 
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: - 
 
i)    Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
 
i) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
 
ii) Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the Involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Date: 03.09.2021 
Place: New Delhi 

 
Sd/- 

Uddhav Rathi 
DIN: 06604905 

(Whole Time Director cum CFO) 
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